
Thursday, October 24, 2024

Committees and 

Board Meeting 

Packet 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 

Prepared by: 

Tracy Byard 

Oceana County Administrator 

Today’s m eetings 

begin at 10:00 a.m.

Board of Commissioners 

Robert Walker, Chairperson 

Craig Hardy   

Tim Beggs, Vice-Chairperson 
Joel McCormick

Paul Erickson 

1



PUBLIC NOTICE 
OCEANA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420 – (231) 873-4835 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold the following committee meetings 

and its regular board meeting on Thursday, October 24, 2024 beginning at 10:00 a.m. 
and 11:30 a.m. respectively.  The meetings will be held in the Oceana County Board of

Commissioners Room located at 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

• Properties, Environment and Economic Development Committee
• Finance and Administration Committee

• Regular Board of Commissioners Meeting

Detailed meeting agendas are available online at:
https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/

or, by contacting the County Administrator’s Office at the address shown above, by 

telephone (231) 873-4835, or by email countyadmin@oceana.mi.us 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners has cancelled the following meetings 

by order of the committee/board chairperson due to a lack of business: 

None

All meetings are open to all members of the public. This notice is given pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 

provisions of the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended.  Oceana County does not discriminate 

on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, and age in the delivery of services. 

2

https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/
mailto:countyadmin@oceana.mi.us


AGENDA 

 Properties, Environment and Economic Development Committee 

There will be a committee meeting on Thursday, October 24, 2024, beginning at 10:00 a.m., or immediately 

following any preceding committee meetings, in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State 

Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Committee Chair: Paul Erickson          Committee Vice-Chair: Joel McCormick 

Presenter Description Item # 

Mr. Erickson Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes from   September 26, 2024                      Pages 4-5 
Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Administrator 

Byard 

Building Department Move – I.T. supplies 2024-121 

Administrator 

Byard 

County Building Chiller 2024-122 

DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORT 

Public Comment (state name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

3

Pages 6-13

Pages 14-22



UNOFFICIAL   

1 SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 

Properties, Environment, and Economic Development Committee 

The Properties, Environment, and Economic Development Committee Meeting was called to order by 

Chairperson Erickson, on Thursday, September 26, 2024 at 10:09 a.m. in the Board Conference Room. 

Present: Mr. Beggs, Mr. Hardy, Mr. Walker, and Mr. Erickson. 

Also Present: Mr. Garry McKeen, Oceana County Planning Commission; Mr. Vaughn White, Program 

Advisor, The Ladder Community Center; Mr. Curtis Burdette, Executive Director, Oceana County 

Economic Alliance (OCEA); Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator, and Ms. Coon, Oceana County 

Chief Deputy Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and seconded by Mr. Hardy to approve the minutes of the August 22, 2024 

Properties, Environment, and Economic Development Committee as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Erickson asked if there were any changes to the agenda. No changes were mentioned. 

Moved by Mr. Walker and seconded by Mr. Hardy to approve the agenda as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Agenda Items 

Ms. Byard brought forth bid opening and discussion of the Transfer Station scale bids.  One bid was 

received. The bid was from GR Metrology, Grand Rapids, Michigan. The scale purchase and installation 

quote for the scale was $130,604.  The quote for the scale house was $21,000. 

Mr. Walker requested to move the discussion and award of the scale bid to the next regular board 

meeting on October 10, 2024.  He wanted to have Rick Wadel and Dan Hallack review the bid for 

completeness.  The Board concurred. 

Ms. Byard brought forth the candidates for the Materials Management Planning Committee openings.  

Oceana County has four positions to fill for the newly created committee that will be working with the 

West Michigan Shoreline Regional Development Commission (WMSRDC) to create a 5-county plan.  

The four positions are for two elected officials and two business owners.  Ms. Lynne Cavazos, Pentwater 

Township Supervisor, has expressed interest in being an appointee.  Mr. Jim Kleiner, Purdue Farms, 

has agreed to be put forth as an appointee as a business owner. 

Ms. Byard brought forth the Brownfield Appointments.  There is an opening on the board and a 

recommendation has been given for the seat to be filled by Mr. Chad Robinson.  The terms for current 

board members Mr. Curtis Burdette, Oceana County Economic Alliance, and Ms. Mary Lou Phillips, 

Oceana County Treasurer, will expire on September 30, 2024, and they have requested to be 

reappointed. 

Ms. Byard brought forth the Planning Commission appointment.  Mr. Morse vacated his position as a 

county commissioner on the commission, but there were two openings and Mr. Morse was asked if he 

would take one of those positions and he agreed. 

Ms. Byard invited Mr. White to speak about the EPA Grant Application.  He described the project the 

grant is being sought for, The Ladder Community Resilience Center in Rothbury, Michigan.  The grant 

deadline is November 21, 2024, and requires the signature of the lead applicant which would be 

Oceana County. 

4



UNOFFICIAL   

2 SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 

Mr. Burdette noted the Board previously approved the contract for this project because Oceana County 

will be the lead applicant for this grant.  The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has been very helpful 

in preparing everything for this grant.  

Public Comment 

Mr. McKeen provided an update on the Marshville Dam Project.  He also noted that the Conservation 

District would be inviting all Oceana County 6th grade students to Gale’s Pond on September 27, 2024, 

for a six-station conservation nature walk. 

Mr. Burdette pointed out there is a vacancy on the OCEA board due to Mr. Morse’s resignation and he 

invited any interested county commissioners to let him know if they would like to serve on that board. 

Mr. Burdette reported that earlier this year the Brownfield Tax Increment Financing Plan had a big 

change, and they are now a Housing Tax Increment Financing Plan as well.  The change provides 

considerable tax incentives to developers to build housing complexes.  

Mr. McKeen strongly suggested that a maintenance contract be obtained for the Transfer Station scale 

as they often need repairs or recalibration. 

Mr. McKeen suggested that the Materials Management Planning Commission seek out the Conservation 

District for recycling inspiration as they are perhaps the best recycler in Oceana County. 

Chairperson Erickson asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 10:55 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Melanie A. Coon 

Oceana County Chief Deputy Clerk 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



AGENDA 

 Finance and Administration Committee 

There will be a committee meeting on Thursday, October 24, 2024, beginning at 10:00 a.m., or immediately 

following any preceding committee meetings, in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State 

Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Committee Chair:  Craig Hardy        Committee Vice-Chair: Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Item # 

Commissioner 

Hardy 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Meeting Minutes from   October 10, 2024 Pages  24-28 
Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Mr. Troy 

Maloney, Emerg 

Manager 

Emergency Management Performance Grant      

    Pages 29-38

2024-123 

Mr. James Kelly, 

MSUE Dist. Dir. 

Memorandum of Agreement for MSUE Services and Memorandum of 

Agreement for Administrative Services for Economic Development 

Pages 39-45

2024-124 & 

125 

Administrator 

Byard 

Consideration of adoption to approve the 2024 Apportionment Report of 

millage rates and form L4402          

Pages 46-51

2024-126 

Administrator 

Byard 

Administrator’s Review of Selected Claims for Payment      Pages 52-54

Administrator’s Report  

2024-129 

Department Head Reports 

Public Comment (state name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

23



UNOFFICIAL 

1 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

Finance and Administration Committee 

The Finance and Administration Committee Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Hardy on 

Thursday, October 10, 2024, at 10:00 a.m., in the Board Conference Room. 

Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Beggs, Mr. McCormick,  Mr. Walker, and Mr. Hardy. 

Also Present: Ms. Laura Ackerman, Oceana County Soil Conservation District Director; Mr. Phil Morse, 

Oceana County Economic Alliance (OCEA) Chairperson; Mr. Ian Rees, Audit Mgr., Gabridge & Company 

(via Zoom); Mr. Richard Raffaelli, Shelby Twp. Supervisor; Mr. Curtis Burdette, Oceana County 

Economic Alliance; Mr. James Tiffany; Ms. Michelle Martin, Oceana County Drain Commissioner; Mr. 

Ryan Schiller, Oceana County Undersheriff; Ms. Cristina Juska, Oceana’s Herald Journal 

correspondent; Mr. Brendan Samuels, The Echo correspondent; Mr. Lee Hyslop, Crystal Township 

Supervisor; Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator; and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Walker to approve the minutes of the September 26, 2024 

Finance and Administration Committee meeting as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Hardy asked if there were any additions to the agenda. No additions were mentioned. 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and seconded by Mr. Beggs to approve the agenda as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

Ms. Laura Ackerman, Director Oceana County Soil Conservation District, requested a budget increase 

in order to continue with education and action through resource and distribution. 

Mr. Phil Morse, OCEA chair spoke on behalf of Curtis Burdette and the Economic Alliance.  He stressed 

that there is a need for another employee to assist with the increase of work and ability to grow our 

county. 

Agenda Items 

Mr. Ian Rees, Audit Mgr., Gabridge & Company presented a report on the audit via zoom. Mr. Rees 

reported the audit passed with no issues.  Revenue was $6.25 million with expenses up at $1.5 million.  

He went over pensions and the basic financial statements. 

Mr. Richard Raffaelli, Shelby Twp. Supervisor requested an appropriation from the County for the 

Shelby Township Enclosed Facility.  He requested $50,000 from ARPA funds to help with the indoor 

facility at Shelby Township Park. He stated that construction will begin in May 2025.  The total cost is 

roughly $8.5 million and noted that all but one million dollars have been funded. 

Mr. Richard Raffaelli, Chief Operating Officer, Peterson Farms, Inc. and Mr. Curtis Burdette, Economic 

Alliance requested additional staffing for Oceana County Economic Alliance.  Mr. Raffaelli spoke in 

support of additional staff for Mr. Burdette.  He stated that this employee would be under the control 

of the county.  Mr. Burdette stated that some of the grant money could be used for administration 

purposes. 

Mr. Walker provided information on the Transfer Station Scale. He stated that the only way to run the 

transfer station properly is to scale in and scale out.  He noted that the price of the scale is $136,041.  

The total for the project is $170,000 from the Building Improvement Fund.  There would be less than 

a two-year payback.  He would be in favor of entering into a contract with GR Metrology for a 50’ x 

11’ scale.   

Administrator Byard requested approval of the Peer Group Contracts for Remonumentation.  
24



UNOFFICIAL 

2 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

Administrator Byard requested an appointment to the Materials Management Planning Committee. 

She stated that there are two positions for a municipality (one village or city and one for a township) 

and two for a business. Her recommendation was Ms. Connie Cargill, Golden Township Treasurer to 

fill the municipality of a township position.  

Commissioner Erickson began discussion regarding Crystal Valley Dam.  Mr. James Tiffany, engineer, 

was present via zoom.  He explained the various aspects of the plan to correct the issues with the dam 

and stated that this project is expected to start next summer. He stated that local companies would 

be used as long as they were able to provide the service necessary.  He noted that some grants have 

become available through EGLE. He stated that an application should be submitted to EGLE with plans 

and then if approved, bids will be requested.    

Ms. Byard did not read the claims for payment, but the following was provided: 

REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures) 

Fund # Dept. # Dept. Name Amount Purpose 

Special Revenue 

Funds 

210 - Ambulance  $    1,127.62 

to Republic Services for 

dumpster service 

286 - American Rescue Plan  $     10,716.06 

to Oceana Conservation 

District FY 2024 ARPA 

Expenditure reimbursements 

 $     21,226.00 

to Scheid Plumbing Heating & 

Cooling, Inc. for Sterling water 

treatment deposit 

260 - Indigent Defense  $     9,087.00 

to Hayes Law Offices for court 

appointed attorney fees. 

298 - Technology & Innovation  $    - 

To Huntington National bank 

for assorted machinery and 

equipment 

445 - Public Improvement  $    2,699.32 

to Scott Monroe Jr (Fire House 

Films) for courthouse window 

tinting 

549 - Building Department  $    8,894.00 

to Randolph D Miller, LLC for 

inspections and permits 

 $    2,627.44 

to Kevin Greiner for 

inspections and permits 

 $    1,751.47 

to Sonnie Smith for 

inspections and permits 

25



UNOFFICIAL 

3 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

 $    4,113.10 

to Lance Gates for inspections 

and permits 

General Fund 

101 - Board of Commissioners  $    6,623.62 

to H Security & Investigation 

for courthouse security 

services 

248 - General Services Administration  $    - to Pitney Bowes for postage 

262 - Elections  $    1,068.39 

to Spectrum Printers, Inc. for 

the November 2024 election 

costs 

265 -  Courthouse & Ground  $    1,541.94 

to Republic Services for 

dumpster services 

 $    3,996.06 to City of Hart for utilities] 

301 - Sheriff  $    1,294.31 

to AT&T Mobility for telephone 

services 

 $     10,296.83 to Wex Bank for fuel 

 $    1,180.00 

to the Michigan Sheriff's 

Association for employee 

training 

 $    1,296.55 to NYE Uniform for uniforms 

351 - Jail  $    2,062.59 

to Gordon Food Service for 

inmate board and janitorial 

supplies 

 $    1,598.85 

to Gordon Food Service for 

inmate board and janitorial 

supplies 

 $    4,346.04 to City of Hart for utilities 

 $    1,249.33 

to Gordon Food Service for 

inmate board and janitorial 

supplies 

26



UNOFFICIAL 

4 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

528 - Transfer Station  $     18,283.20 

to American Classic for 

dumpster services 

 $    1,382.50 to Geocycle for tire recycling 

601 - Health Department  $    1,018.79 

to Consumers Energy for 

utilities 

710 - MSU Extension  $     36,598.75 

to MSUE for 4th quarter 2024 

MOA Work Plan 

728 - Economic & Community Development  $    2,125.00 

to MSUE for 3rd quarter 2024 

Right Place Clerical Support 

~ Total  $  209,481.01 

Administrator’s Report 

Ms. Byard mentioned that there has been discussion regarding a vehicle for the Emergency 

Manager’s use.  She stated that she has been consulting with Undersheriff Schiller about a leased 

vehicle through Enterprise. She indicated that the lease for a Chevy Trailblazer would be $3900 a 

year.  There would be a reduction of $2328 in travel and he could apply for grant funds in the 

amount of $1440. 

She has been sending out information regarding the Animal Control vehicle. 

Ms. Byard mentioned that she and Jessica met with Brown and Brown, to discuss the health 

insurance and noted that there is a 4.07% increase and have asked them to make some 

adjustments and report back to them.  

Ms. Byard reminded that she sent an email regarding the West Michigan County Alliance meeting to 

be held in Lake County.  Please let her know if you will be attending so that she can make 

reservations. 

Ms. Byard mentioned that Mr. Erickson reached out to her regarding a public notice that was 

published in the paper.  The QR code that was included was not working.  She also noted that the 

proof copy that was provided did have a working QR code.  

Department Head Reports 

Undersheriff Schiller reported that the Uninterrupted Power Supply is up and running. He stated that 

the cut over was scheduled for November 5, however they are working on rescheduling as that is 

election day and they do not want to cause any issues for the Clerk’s office on Election Day.  There 

have been some plumbing issues and working to get that corrected. He also noted that the City of 

Hart has been working on some sidewalk projects and it was noticed that the carport at the Sheriff’s 

Office is cracked and upheaved.  Conversation continued regarding this issue and a quote was 

27



UNOFFICIAL 

5 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

requested from the City for replacement of the pad. The estimate was approximately $4900. 

Undersheriff stated that now would be the time to have this replaced as the city is currently working 

on the sidewalks.   

Mr. Walker suggested that the curb be cut away to make it wheelchair accessible at the same time.  

He also complimented the Jail Lieutenant, corrections staff, and administration for passing the MDOC 

Inspection on all points. 

Mr. Garry McKeen, Oceana County Parks & Recreation stated that relationships are very important 

when applying for grants. He noted that the fishing platform at Marshville Dam was funded by a Great 

Lakes Fishery Access Fund that CRA found. He has written a request to the Board for $100,000 from 

some ARPA funds to help fund projects that have been unfunded for a long time. This would help to 

pave the parking lots at Gales Pond Park, Cedar Point Park and Marshville Dam to be ADA compliant.  

Public Comment 

Mr. Curtis Burdette, Oceana County Economic Alliance (OCEA), provided updates on various items. He 

noted that tomorrow is the breakfast for the OCEA.  Next week he will be attending the Merrit 

Broadband Summit at Crystal Mountain. They have been speaking to internet providers.  The Oceana 

County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority approved an environmental assessment at the previous 

Village Hall in Pentwater.  There has been $225,000 out of the $300,000 grant that has been 

committed which leaves $75,000 left for environmental assessments.  They are still looking for other 

opportunities. 

Ms. Michelle Martin, Oceana County Drain Commissioner, reported that projects are being finished up. 

She commented on Mr. Tiffany’s report that an engineered plan must be developed prior to submitting 

the application to EGLE. 

Mr. Hyslop, Crystal Township Supervisor, provided an update on the farm road project.  He will be 

attending a meeting on November 15 to clarify where his data came from.  He also spoke in support 

of the additional office support for Mr. Curtis Burdette.  

Chairperson Hardy asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 12:11 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy L. Anderson 

Oceana County Clerk 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Page 1 of 5 _________ FY 2025 

Oceana County 

AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION SERVICES (“Agreement”) is entered into on _____________________ by and 

between Oceana County, Michigan (“County”), and the BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

(“MSU”) on behalf of MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY EXTENSION (MSUE”). 

The United States Congress passed the Smith-Lever Act in 1914 creating a National Cooperative Extension 

System and directed the nation’s land grant universities to oversee its work; and, 

MSUE helps people improve their lives by bringing the vast knowledge resources of MSU directly to individuals, 

communities and businesses; and, 

For more than 100 years, MSUE has helped grow Michigan’s economy by equipping Michigan residents with the 

information needed to do their jobs better, raise healthy and safe families, build their communities and 

empower our children to succeed; and, 

It is the mission of MSUE to help people improve their lives through an educational process that applies 

knowledge to critical issues, needs and opportunities; and, 

Further, as an organization committed to the principles of diversity, equity and inclusion, we will work 

collaboratively with our community partners to ensure participation from the broad human diversity of each 

community (including race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, disability, height, weight, marital status, 

gender, gender identity (gender expression), political beliefs, sexual orientation, family status, veteran status or 

any other factor prohibited by applicable law) and work to make our programs accessible and inclusive of the 

multiple realities and forms of knowledge that will support equitable outcomes for all throughout Michigan’s 83 

counties; 

MSUE meets this mission by providing Extension educational programs in the following subject matter areas: 

• Agriculture & Agribusiness

• Children & Youth Development, including 4-H

• Health & Nutrition

• Community, Food & Environment

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and other good and valuable 

consideration, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

A. MSUE will provide:

1. Access to programs in all four MSUE  Institutes to residents in your County.  This includes access to

educators and program instructors appointed to the Institutes and MSU faculty affiliated with each

Institute to deliver core programs.

39



Page 2 of 5 _________ FY 2025 

Oceana County 

2. Extension Educators and program staff as needed to implement programs within the County,

housed at the county office.

3. A county 4-H program.  .5 FTE 4-H Program Coordination.

4. Salary and benefits of MSUE Personnel and the cost of administrative oversight of Personnel.

5. Operating expenses, per MSU policy, for MSUE personnel (“Personnel”).

6. Supervision of MSU-provided academic and paraprofessional staff.  Supervision of county employed

clerical staff and/or other county employed staff, upon request.

7. Administrative oversight of MSUE office operations.

8. An annual report of services provided to the residents of the County during the term of this

Agreement, including information about audiences served, and impact of Extension programs in the

County.

B. The County will provide:

1. An annual assessment that will be charged to the county and administered by MSUE.  The

assessment will help fund Extension services for the County, including operating expenses for

certain Extension personnel and the operation of the County 4-H program.

2. Office and meeting space meeting the following requirements:

a. Sufficient office space to house Extension staff as agreed upon between the County and the

MSUE District Director.

b. Utilities, including telephone and telephone service sufficient to meet the needs of Personnel

utilizing MSUE office space.

c. High-speed Internet service sufficient to meet the needs to Personnel utilizing the MSUE

office space.

d. Access to space for delivering Extension programs.

e. Access to the office building and relevant meeting spaces must be ADA compliant/accessible.

3. Clerical support for staff for the MSUE office as agreed upon between the County and MSUE

District Director that will perform clerical functions, including assisting County residents in

accessing MSUE resources by office visit, telephone, email, internet and media.  The clerical

support staff will be either a County employed clerical staff, or the County will provide funding for

an MSUE employed clerical staff.

.5 FTE MSU employed Clerical Support Staff 

.375 FTE MSU employed Oceana 4-H Administrative Support Staff 

40



Page 3 of 5 _________ FY 2025 

Oceana County 

Optional: 

4. Funding for additional Extension educators at 0 FTE

5. Funding for additional 4-H program capacity at .5 FTE

6. Funding for additional paraprofessional(s) at 0 FTE

7. Total Annual Assessment in the amount of  $150,786

Payments due and payable under the terms of this agreement shall be made on the first of the

month, of the first month, in each quarter of the county fiscal year, unless otherwise requested and

agreed as provided below.

Payment mailing address:  MSU Extension Business Office, Justin S. Morrill Hall of Agriculture, 446 W. Circle 

Drive, Room 160, East Lansing, Michigan 48824 

C. Staffing and Financial Summary:

A. Base Assessment (includes .5 FTE 4-H Program Coordination) $50,607 

ADDITIONAL PERSONNEL 

B. .5 FTE Clerical Support Staff to be employed by MSU $36,429 

.375 FTE Oceana 4-H Administrative Support Staff to be employed by MSU $27,321 

C. 0 FTE Educator (Program Area: ) $0 

D. .5 FTE Additional 4-H Program Coordination $36,429 

E. 0 FTE Additional paraprofessional staff $0 

TOTAL COUNTY ASSESSMENT PAYABLE TO MSU FOR FY 2025: $150,786 

I. Term and Termination

The obligations of the parties under this Agreement will commence on January 1, 2025, the first day of

the County budget year 2025 and shall terminate on the last day of such County budget year 2025.

Either party to this Agreement may terminate the Agreement, with or without cause, with 120 days

written notice delivered to Michigan State University Extension, Justin S. Morrill Hall of Agriculture, 446

W. Circle Drive, Room 160, East Lansing, MI 48824 if to MSUE and delivered to Oceana County

Administrator, 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420, if to the County.

II. General Terms

1. Independent Contractor. The University is an independent contractor providing services to the County.
The County and MSU do not have the relationship of legal partners, joint venturers, principals or agents.
Personnel have no right to any of County’s employee benefits.

41



Page 4 of 5 _________ FY 2025 
  
 Oceana County    

 

2. Force Majeure.  Each party will be excused from the obligations of this agreement to the extent that its 
performance is delayed or prevented by circumstances (except financial) reasonably beyond its control, 
including, but not limited to, acts of government, embargoes, fire, flood, explosions, acts of God, or a 
public enemy, strikes, labor disputes, vandalism, or civil riots. 

3. Assignment.  This agreement is non-assignable and non-transferable.     
4. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, with its Appendix “A” is the entire agreement between MSU and the 

County.  This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements, for the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  The Agreement can only be modified in writing, signed by both MSU and the County.  

5. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of MSU and the County and does 
not create any benefit or right for any other person, including residents of the County. 

6. Nondiscrimination: The parties will adhere to all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations prohibiting discrimination.  Neither party will discriminate against a person to be served 
or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, 
disability, height, weight, marital status, or any other factor prohibited by applicable law. 
 

 

The individuals signing below each have authority to bind MSU and the County, respectively. 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF    OCEANA COUNTY 

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

By:________________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 
Evonne Pedawi      Print name:_____________________ 
Contract & Grant Administration 
Its: Executive Director     Its:_____________________________ 
         (title) 
Date:______________________________  Date:___________________________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Page 5 of 5 _________ FY 2025 

Oceana County 

Appendix A 

Technical Standards for County Internet Connections 

 Michigan State University Extension (MSUE) employs the use of technology to meet the ever-changing needs of our constituents. We 

strive to utilize standard, enterprise tools when appropriate, but also recognize the need to evolve with the times and utilize innovative 

tools to reach a broad array of people. 

MSUE does support and encourage the use of technologies that others may not, including social media platforms. We view communication 

with our constituents through Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, YouTube, and other emerging social media to be critical to our work. MSUE 

staff are required to follow the MSU Acceptable Use Policy (AUP) https://tech.msu.edu/about/guidelines-policies/aup/. 

We ask that our county partners provide Extension personnel access to a high-speed Internet connection. From that access, the easiest way 

to create a secure path to necessary applications is to open the full MSU Internet Protocol Range to and from your network, as well as 

opening social media sites to the addresses used by MSUE staff at your location. MSUE is prepared to support end user needs if there is 

high-speed internet, networking to clients, and phone system support. MSU will provide firewall functionality and client support. To 

discuss this possibility please contact your MSUE District Director. To provide the needed services on county equipment review the 

following MSU-owned ranges: 

The MSU-owned ranges are:

NetRange35.8.0.0 - 35.9.255.255 CIDR 35.8.0.0/15

If you would like to narrow the scope further for additional protection, some of the addresses that will need to be allowable include:

Office 365 – Details on what to open are at https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/enterprise/urls-and-ip-address-

ranges?view=o365-worldwide

search.msu.edu

35.9.160.36 (1935,443) authentication)

45.60.149.216

35.9.247.31 (zoom.msu.edu)

d2l.msu.edu (80 and 443) (D2L – Desire to Learn @ Brightspace.com)

108.161.147.0/24, 199.231.78.0/24, 64.62.142.12/32, 209.206.48.0/20 (external) Meraki Cloud communication

199.231.78.148/32, 64.156.192.245/32 (external) Meraki VPN registry

The following applications are necessary on all computers – MS Office (preferably O365, MSUE provides MS licensing), Adobe Acrobat, 

Zoom, SAP client, VPN client, Antivirus. (Most recent version of Chrome, Firefox, or Edge)

Other notable web server/sites IP addresses:

canr.msu.edu – 52.5.24.1

msue.anr.msu.edu – 52.5.24.1

events.anr.msu.edu/web3.anr.msu.edu – 45.60.11.113

web2.canr.msu.edu | web2.msue.msu.edu - 35.8.200.220 

master Gardener (External) – 128.120.155.54

extension.org (External) – 54.69.217.186 msu.zoom.us (External)

Questions may be directed to anr.support@msu.edu where they will be routed to the best person to assist you.

43

https://tech.msu.edu/about/guidelines-policies/aup/
https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/enterprise/urls-and-ip-address-ranges?view=o365-worldwide
https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/enterprise/urls-and-ip-address-ranges?view=o365-worldwide
mailto:anr.support@msu.edu


Agreement between the Oceana County and Michigan State University (MSU) 
Michigan State University (MSU), through its Extension program (MSUE) and in 

collaboration with Oceana County, is committed to helping residents improve their 
lives through educational programs and services in Oceana County. To maximize 
our resources and talents while expanding our reach, both organizations have 
committed to sharing resources and goals to better serve the residents of Oceana 
County. 

To that end, the following agreement has been determined to be beneficial to both 
MSU and Oceana County.  

Michigan State University Extension will provide: 

1. Work hours: Ten (10) additional hours of staffing per week for the MSU Extension
clerical support staff housed at the Oceana County Services Building (844 S.
Griswold Street, Suite 200, Hart, MI 49420). Those additional hours will be utilized
to support the economic development efforts of the Right Place Oceana County and
will primarily involve clerical support.

2. Supervision: The clerical staff person will remain a MSU employee and will be
supervised by the MSU Extension District 5 Director.

3. MSU will provide a computer to the employee.
4. In times of staffing transition, the employee will be hired by MSU Extension and

follow guidelines similar to all MSU employees. The employee will also be eligible
for the MSU health and retirement benefits.

Oceana County will provide: 

1. Workspace for the joint position in the Oceana County Services building. The
workspace will include space for one person, access to a telephone, high-speed
internet service, and copying/printing capabilities. Access to space for Oceana
County related meetings as needed.

2. Monetary contribution to be cover the costs of the work hours.
3. Joint quarterly meetings with the MSU Extension District 5 Director, and the

Oceana County Right Place representative to provide direction and feedback
regarding the arrangement.

Specific Contributions by Oceana County 

1. For the period from January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2025, Oceana County shall
pay MSUE a total of $12,860 for salary and fringe benefits.

2. Quarterly payments of $3,215 will be due April 1st, July 1st, and October 1st, 2025,
and January 1st, 2026.

3. Invoices will be submitted to Tracy Byard, County Administrator, at
admin@oceana.mi.us.

4. Payment mailing address: MSU Extension Business Office, Room 160, Justin S.
Morrill Hall of Agriculture, 446 West Circle Drive, Michigan State University, East
Lansing, Ml 48824.

44



Term and Termination 

I. This agreement is effective on January 1, 2025, and expires December 31, 2025.
The agreement may be renewed annually; however, the contribution for services
provided will be updated to reflect the actual salary rate and fringe benefits of the
employee filling the role. Either MSUE or Oceana County may terminate this
agreement, with or without cause, with 120 days written notice.

II. General Terms
1. Independent Contractor. The University is an independent contractor providing

services to Oceana County. Oceana County and the University do not have the
relationship of legal partners, joint venturers, principals or agents. MSUE
personnel have no right to any of Oceana County’s employee benefits.

2. Force Majeure. Each party will be excused from the obligations of this
agreement to the extent that its performance is delayed or prevented by
circumstances (except financial) reasonably beyond its control, including but not
limited to, acts of government, embargoes, fire, flood, explosions, acts of God,
or a public enemy, strikes, labor disputes, vandalism, or civil riots.

3. Assignment. This agreement is non-assignable and non-transferable.
4. Entire Agreement. The agreement is the entire agreement between MSUE and

Oceana County, superseding all previous agreements, for the subject matter of
this Agreement. The agreement can only be modified in writing signed by both
MSUE and Oceana County.

5. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The agreement is solely for the benefit of MSUE
and Oceana County. It does not create any benefit or right for any other person,
including residents of the County.

6. Indemnification. Statutory and common law theories and principles of
indemnification, contribution and equitable restitution shall govern and apply to
claims, actions, causes of action, costs, expenses and losses (including
attorneys' fees) resulting from or caused by the actions or omissions of the
parties or their employees pursuant to this Agreement.

7. Non-discrimination. The parties will adhere to all applicable federal, state and
local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination. The
University, as required by law, will not discriminate against a person to be
served or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, national origin, age, sex, disability, height, weight, marital status, or any
other factor prohibited by applicable law.

Michigan State University Oceana County 

____________________________   ___________________________ 
Executive Director,  Administrator 
Contract & Grant Administration 

_____________________________ ___________________________ 
Date  Date   

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Fund # Dept. # Dept. Name Amount Purpose

Special Revenue Funds

210 - Ambulance 4,422.10$           

to Michigan Municipal Risk Management 

for quarterly liability insurance

215 - Firend of the Court 2,194.06$           to Image Soft for monthly services

243 - Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 41,845.52$         to Fishbeck for other contractual services

1,026.88$           to GovOS, Inc for monthly services

260 - Indigent Defense 10,963.50$         to Good Law for court appointed attorney fees

10,229.00$         

to Hayes Law Office for court appointed 

attorney fees

18,766.50$         

to Springstead Law Office for court appointed 

attorney fees

1,193.00$           to Oceana Veterinary Clinic for vet expenses

1,397.69$           to WMCJTC for employee training

298 - Technology & Innovation 3,633.53$           

to Huntington National Bank for equipment 

repairs/maintenance; machinery & equipment, 

and software

45,272.65$         

to Michigan Municipal Risk Management 

for quarterly liability insurance

272 - Criminal Justice Training

267 - K9 Unit

Oceana County Administrator
REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures)

General Fund

208 - Insurance

256 - Automation

52



18,150.00$         

to V & V Assessing, LLC for monthly 

equalization services

1,087.17$           

to Huntington National Bank for janitorial 

supplies, machinery & equpment, and 

vehicle repairs/maintenance

4,223.92$           

to Hayes Law Office for November 2024 

appropriations for services and expenses

3,351.70$           

to Heacock Reporting for November 2024 

appropriations

2,754.09$           

to Mason County Treasurer for 3rd quarter 

2024 fringe benefits for Circuit Court

4,223.92$           

to Springstead Law Offices for November 

2024 appropriations for services and 

expenses

2,627.33$           

to Mason County Treasurer for 3rd quarter 

2024 fringe benefits for District Court

1,282.77$           to Amanda Klotz for travel reimbursment

3,162.00$           

to MGT of America Consulting, LLC for 

CRP billing

1,350.00$           

to Barkow Law Company, PLLC for 3rd 

quarter 2024 county guardian fees

2,060.00$           

to Integrity Business Solutions for office 

supplies

21,691.05$         

to Enterprise FM Trust for vehicle rentals, 

repairs, and maintenance

1,500.00$           

to Grace Adventures for Adult/Family 

Trainings

1,575.96$           

to Gordon Food Serice for inmate board and 

janitorial supplies

1,810.29$           

to Gordon Food Serice for inmate board and 

janitorial supplies

257 - Equalization

301 - Sheriff

351 - Jail 

265 -  Courthouse & Ground

283 - Circuit Court

286 - District Court

289 - Friend of Court

294 - Probate Court

296 - Prosecuing Attorney

53



1,710.00$           

to Dash Medical Supplies, Inc for medical 

supplies

1,809.12$           

to Engineered Protection Systems for 

security services

2,805.14$           

to Huntington National Bank for equipment 

repairs/maintenance

2,099.00$           

to American Classic Dumpster for 

equipment rental

8,571.75$           to AVFuel Corporation for fuel

42,788.75$         

to DHD #10 for 4th quarter 2024 

appropriation

7,761.00$           

to Mid Michigan Medicalk Examiner Group 

for 3rd quarter 2024 fees

10,647.92$         

to West Michigan CMH for October 2024 

local match

~ Total 271,578.39$       

528 - Transfer Station 

601 - Health Department

649 - Mental Health

595 - Airport

648 - Medical Examiner

54



AGENDA 

Board Meeting 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold its Regular Meeting on Thursday, October 24, 2024, 

beginning at 11:30 a.m. in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Board Chair: Robert Walker              Board Vice-Chair: Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Item # 

Chair 

11:30 a.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET AND TAX 

LEVIES 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of minutes from                  October 24, 2024                  Pages 67-69
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Regarding Agenda Items 

Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Chairman Walker Presentation of Service Award

Ms. Melanie Coon – 20 Years of Service

Commissioner 

Hardy 

Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget and Tax Levies 

Motion 2024-128 to adopt the proposed Resolution #24-15 adopting the Fiscal 

Year 2025 Budget and property tax millage rates to be levied. 

      Roll Call 

2024-128 

Commissioner 

Beggs 

Shelby Township Enclosed Facility Appropriation Request 

Motion 2024-114 to approve an appropriation in the amount of $50,000 for the 

Shelby Township Enclosed Facility project with funds to be paid from ARPA 

Funds.      Pages 57-66
     Roll Call 

2024-114 

Commissioner 

McCormick 

IT Supplies for Building Department Move 

Motion 2024-121 to approve the purchase of IT items needed for the Building 

Inspection Department move in the amount of $9,874.03 with funds to be paid 

from the Building Improvement Fund. 

     Roll Call        

2024-121 

Commissioner 

Erickson 

Chiller 

Motion 2024-122 to approve the purchase of a chiller for the county courthouse 

in the amount of $118,000 from Boardwell Mechanical Services, Inc. with funds 

to come from ARPA Funds. 

2024-122 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

55



Page 2 

Presenter Description Item # 

    Roll Call 

Commissioner 

Beggs 

Emergency Management Performance Grant 

Motion 2024-123 to approve the Fiscal Year 2024 Emergency Management 

Performance Grants (EMPG) Grant Agreement Package and allow the Chair, 

County Clerk and County Administrator to sign.  

   Roll Call        

2024-123 

Commissioner 

Erickson 

MSU Extension Memorandum of Agreement 

Motion 2024-124 to approve the Memorandum of Agreement between MSU 

Extension and Oceana County for FY2025 and allow the Chair to sign. 

      Roll Call        

2024-124 

Commissioner 

McCormick 

MSU Extension Agreement for Clerical Support 

Motion 2024-125 to approve the agreement with MSU Extension and Oceana 

County for Fy2025 for the purpose of clerical support for economic 

development and allow the Chair to sign.         Roll Call 

2024-125 

Commissioner 

Hardy 

Apportionment Report and Form L4402 

Motion #2024-126 to adopt the 2024 Apportionment Report of Oceana County 

millage rates as calculated and compiled by the Oceana County Equalization 

Department and authorize the Oceana County Equalization Director to 

complete and sign the Michigan Department of Treasury Form L-4402 to be 

submitted to the Michigan Department of Treasury in a timely fashion. 

     Roll Call 

2024-126 

Commissioner 

Beggs 

Per Diem Increase and Commissioner Wages 

Motion 2024-127 to increase per diem rates from $30 per meeting to $50 per 

meeting as per the county's allowable per diem schedule and increase

County Commissioner wages by 2% for years 2026 and 2028 of their term. 

2024-127 

Commissioner 

Hardy 

Payment of Claims    Pages 70-72 2024-129 

REPORTS FROM COMMISSIONERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

56



Page 1 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

Resolution #24-15 

October 24, 2024 

RESOLUTION 24-15 TO APPROVE THE 2025 OCEANA COUNTY BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, Public Act 2 of 1968, as 

amended, indicates that the Legislative body shall adopt a balanced budget for all 

budgeted funds by passing an Appropriations Act; and 

WHEREAS, this resolution shall be known as the Fiscal Year 2025 General 

Appropriations Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to State law, notice of a public hearing on the proposed budget was 

published in a newspaper of general circulation on October 17, 2024, and a public hearing 

on the proposed budget was held on October 24, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, Oceana County voters authorized millage requests of 0.1362 of a mil for 

Mason-Oceana 911, 0.1000 of a mil for Veterans Affairs, 1.0000 mil for Council on Aging, 

0.9780 of a mil for Ambulance and 2.0000 mils for the Medical Care Facility and reduced 

by the healdlee millage reduction fraction if required; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners authorized a general property tax levy on all 

real and personal property within the County for County general operations of 5.6571 

mils; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oceana County Board of 

Commissioners hereby adopts the Fiscal Year 2025 General Appropriations Act; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Oceana County Board of Commissioners 

approves a levy of 0.1362 of a mill for Mason-Oceana 911, 0.1000 of a mill for Veterans 

Affairs, 1.0000 of a mill for Council on Aging, 0.9780 of a mill for Ambulance and 2.0000 

mills for the Medical Care Facility; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2025 Oceana County General Fund (#101) budget 

of $14,267,887 be adopted by line-item activity as described in this resolution; and 

57



Page 2 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other fund budgets (Special Revenue and Debt 

Service funds totaling $48,893,988 be adopted by line-item activity as described in this 

resolution, for a total Fiscal Year 2025 budget for all funds of $63,161,875; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any amendment to increase an employee wage or 

Capital Outlay line-item in excess of $2,500 shall be approved by the Board of 

Commissioners; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any amendment to increase the total budget of any 

fund or department in excess of $2,500 shall be approved by the Board of Commissioners; 

except that any amendment to decrease the General Fund Contingency Account shall be 

approved by the Board of Commissioners; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Administrator be authorized to make 

such other budget amendments as necessary with the exception of those specified in this 

resolution; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the approved Position Allocation List contained in this 

resolution shall limit the number of permanent employees who can be employed in all 

departments, offices, and the courts, and no funds are appropriated for any permanent 

or temporary, full time or part time, position not on the Position Allocation List; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that as position vacancies occur during the budget year, 

and as budget constraints allow, the County Administrator shall be authorized to 

approve court and department requests to refill positions.  All court and department 

requests to create a new position not currently included on the Position Allocation List 

shall only be approved by specific Board of Commissioners authorization; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that certain positions contained in the Position Allocation 

List which are supported in some part by a grant, cost sharing, reimbursement, or some 

other source of outside funding are only approved contingent upon the County receiving 

those budgeted revenues; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event that some outside funding is not received 

or the County is notified that it will not be received, said positions shall be considered 

58



Page 3 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

not funded and removed from the approved Position Allocation List if the Board of 

Commissioners does not act to appropriate funds from County sources to cover the 

shortfall; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it is understood that revenues and expenditures may 

vary from those which are currently contemplated and may be changed from time to time 

by the Board of Commissioners during the 2025 fiscal year, as deemed necessary.  

Consequently, there may be a need to increase or decrease various portions of the budget 

and impose labor-related cost reduction measures due to unforeseen financial changes; 

therefore, it is within the Board of Commissioners authority to change the approved 

Position Allocation List at any time.  County Elected Officials and County Department 

Heads shall abide by whatever changes are made by the Board of Commissioners, if any, 

relative to the approved positions and the number of employees stated in the Position 

Allocation List; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the salary and wages of County employees, including 

the County’s Elected Officials, shall follow the salary and wage rates for non-represented 

employees approved by the Board of Commissioners and effective January 1, 2025, unless 

otherwise authorized by resolution; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, collective bargaining agreements in effect for Fiscal Year 

2025 that establish salary and wage rates shall be followed for represented employees; 

and; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Oceana County will incorporate the Hard Cap 

Provision of the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution Act, Public Act 152 of 

2011; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the line-item appropriations which represent the 

estimated costs of operating the Courts in Fiscal Year 2025 are contingent upon 

reimbursements to Oceana County by the State of Michigan in accordance with MCL 

600.151(b). County appropriations to the Courts, in accordance with Public Act 374 and 

375 of 1996, are made contingent upon conformance to all county policies and procedures 

regarding court personnel and the expenditure of funds; and 

59



Page 4 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all County Elected Officials and County Department 

Heads shall abide by all applicable policies set by the Board of Commissioners including 

but not limited to budgets, purchasing, travel, and per diems; as well as the Oceana 

County Policy Handbook, and that budgeted funds for these purposes are appropriated 

contingent upon compliance with all County policies; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Oceana County Policy Handbook shall apply to 

all employees and elected officials, including those who function under a policy 

handbook or agreement that has been jointly approved by the Board of Commissioners 

and an Elected Official who has co-employer status; and 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the County Administrator shall be authorized to make 

year-end transfers and amendments between line item activities or Funds or with such 

amounts that may be available in the General Fund Contingency Account, as may be 

necessary to ensure that departments and Funds do not end Fiscal Year 2025 in a deficit 

condition. Any such transfers and amendments shall be reported to the Board of 

Commissioners at their next regularly scheduled meeting or as soon thereafter. 

60



Page 5 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

2025 GENERAL APPROPRIATION ACT SUMMARY 

GENERAL FUND 

Acct #  /  Description Revenue 

402-449 Taxes $9,457,300 

450-474 Special Assessments $0 

475-500 Licenses & Permits $316,270 

501-538 Federal Grants $575,400 

539-579 State Grants $1,704,393 

580-599 Contrib. from Local Units $0 

600-654 Charges for Services $467,871 

655-663 Fines and Forfeitures $43,800 

664-670 Interest and Rent $261,025 

671-698 Other Revenue $417,536 

699 Transfers In  $801,916 

692 Previous Year-End Balance 

(unassigned fund balance) 

$222,376 

Total Available Revenue $14,267,887 

61



Page 6 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

2025 GENERAL APPROPRIATION ACT SUMMARY 

GENERAL FUND 

Dept # /  Description Expenditure 

101-000 General $887,826 

101 Board of Commissioners $235,790 

172 County Administrator $403,292 

208 Insurance $185,574 

209 Unemployment $3,000 

215 County Clerk $238,837 

216 Jury Board $2,545 

223 County Auditing $45,400 

228 Data Processing $57,404 

229 Technology Department $168,645 

245 Remonumentation $45,961 

248 General Services $926,071 

249 Plat Board $582 

250 Microfilming $1,500 

253 County Treasurer $311,409 

256 Contingency $50,000 

257 Equalization $242,361 

262 Elections $26,043 

265 Courthouse and Grounds $295,120 

283 Circuit Court $736,309 

286 District Court $433,016 

289 Friend of the Court $612,395 

294 Probate Court $329,338 

295 Circuit Probation/Parole $6,500 

296 Prosecuting Attorney $478,742 

298 Family Counseling $2,500 

301 Sheriff $3,487,580 

302 Student Resource Officer $108,424 

331 Marine Law $79,783 

332 Snowmobile Enforcement $37,041 

62



Page 7 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

333 Road Patrol $98,440 

351 Jail $1,693,322 

426 Emergency Management $123,962 

430 Animal Control $261,568 

442 Drain $166,630 

445 Drains - Public Benefit $4,944 

528 Transfer Station/Recycling $446,984 

568 Soil Conservation $20,000 

595 Airport $127,011 

601 District Health Department #10 $220,655 

605 Contagious Diseases $2,000 

648 Medical Examiner $74,084 

649 Mental Health $130,000 

701 Planning Commission $12,500 

710 MSU Extension $150,886 

711 Register of Deeds $228,053 

728 Economic & Comm Dev $67,860 

Total Expenditures $14,267,887 

Budgetary note: 
1General Fund transfers to these “departments” can be found under 101 – 000 General in the table above. 

63



Page 8 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

2025 GENERAL APPROPRIATION ACT SUMMARY 

SPECIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Fund #  / Description Budget 

110 Court Restitution $15,000 

112 Court Restitution $42,000 

201 Road Commission $13,048,100 

208 Parks and Recreation Fund $63,500 

210 Ambulance Fund $1,596,716 

211 GIS Fund $0 

213 WM Field Rail Trail $0 

214 Court Improvement Fund $4,300 

215 Friend of the Court Fund $37,500 

218 Animal Care Fund $14,546 

238 Pentwater Hart Trail Fund $458,399 

239 Shelby Twp Community Park $1,428,022 

243 Brownfield Redevelopment $193,700 

251 Interim Elderly Fund $47,899 

252 County Land Bank Authority $12,000 

255 Homestead Denials $1,550 

256 Register of Deeds Auto Fund $68,000 

259 Emergency Mgmt Reserve Corp $30 

260 Indigent Defense $750,938 

261 Mason/Oceana E-911 $423,120 

262 Victim Services Fund $1,500 

263 Concealed Pistol Licensing Fund $18,100 

264 Local Corrections Ofc Trng Fund $6,000 

267 K-9 Unit $9,000 

269 Law Library Fund $5,000 

272 Criminal Justice Training Fund $7,200 

275 Senior Citizen Tax Fund $1,554,603 

277 CDBG Fund $813 

284 Opioid Settlement Fund $199,300 

286 American Rescue Plan $0 

64



Page 9 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

287 MCF Depreciation Fund $114,164 

288 Parks & Rec Matching Grant $10,000 

290 Oceana/Mason DHHS Fund $0 

292 Child Care Fund $664,475 

293 Veterans Affairs Fund $277,039 

298 Technology and Innovation Fund $334,900 

361 Ambulance Debt Retirement Fun $30,900 

381 Airport Term Debt Service $0 

391 MCF Building Debt Retirement $0 

405 Capital Projects – Equip Replace $21,465 

408 Parks & Rec Capital Projects $28,500 

413 Animal Control Bldg Improv $14 

445 Public Improvement $300,000 

462 OCRC Capital Projects $3,575,601 

512 S.W. Medical Care Facility $20,143,518 

516 Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund $652,501 

518 New Foreclosure Fund $355,525 

520 100% Tax Pmt – 2020 $23,300 

521 100% Tax Pmt – 2021 $22,400 

522 100% Tax Pmt – 2022 $119,600 

523 100% Tax Pmt – 2013 $155,700 

524 100% Tax Pmt – 2014 $153,200 

525 100% Tax Pmt – 2015 $0 

526 100% Tax Pmt – 2016 $0 

527 100% Tax Pmt – 2017 $0 

528 100% Tax Pmt – 2018 $24,350 

529 100% Tax Pmt – 2019 $27,250 

535 Housing Commission $0 

549 Building Department Fund $490,590 

595 Sheriff Department Commissary $65,000 

639 Drain Equip. Revolving $622 

715 MCF Endowment Fund $13 

721 Library $107,025 

725 Friend of the Court $5 

731 MCF Retirement $1,050,000 

801 Drain Fund $78,325 

65



Page 10 of 10 

Oceana County 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Building 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 

Hart, Michigan  49420 

802 Drain Revolving Fund $0 

841 Lake Level Fund $15,070 

843 Crystal Pond Lake Impr Board $0 

848 Stony Lake Board $46,100 

851 Drain Debt Service Fund $0 

Total Special Revenue Funds $48,893,988 

County Elected Officials’ Annual Salaries for FY 2025 

(Presented in accordance with Public Act 154 of 1879 as amended) 

Treasurer $70,907.20 

Drain Commissioner $70,907.20 

Register of Deeds  $70,907.20 

Clerk  $70,907.20 

Sheriff  $100,880 

Undersheriff  $97,893.02 

Prosecuting Attorney $117,328.64 

Roll call vote: 

66



UNOFFICIAL

1 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

Board Conference Room 
October 10, 2024 
Board of Commissioners Minutes 

The regular meeting of the Oceana County Board of Commissioners was called to order by Chairperson 

Walker, on Thursday, October 10, 2024, at 12:22 p.m. 

Chairperson Walker led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 

America. 

Roll was called by Clerk Anderson. Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Beggs, Mr. Hardy, and 

Mr. Walker.  

Also Present: Mr. Brendan Samuels, The Echo correspondent; Ms. Cristina Juska, Oceana’s Herald 

Journal correspondent; Judge Middlebrook, 79th District Court; Ms. Byard, Oceana County 

Administrator; and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and seconded by Mr. Hardy to approve the minutes from the September 26, 2024 

Regular Board Meeting as amended. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Walker asked if any commissioners wished to declare any conflicts of interest on the 

agenda items. No conflicts were declared. 

Chairperson Walker asked if there were any additions to the agenda. Mr. Hardy suggested the addition 

of the sidewalk and concrete replacement at the Sheriff’s office.  

Chairman Walker suggested that a Budget workshop should be scheduled to review the many requests 

that have come before the board. 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Beggs to approve the agenda as amended. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

Judge Middlebrook, 79th District Court, asked for the Court Room Clerk to be approved for the 2025 

budget year. 

Agenda Items 

MOTION #2024-104 – TRANSFER STATION SCALE 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Beggs, to approve the Transfer Station scale bid from 

GR Metrology in the amount of $151,604.00 not to exceed $170,000 with the funds to be paid from 

the Public Building and Improvement Fund. 

Roll call vote: Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. McCormick – yes; and 

Mr. Walker – yes. 

Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024–116 – PEER GROUP CONTRACTS FOR REMOMUMENTATION 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Hardy, to approve the Remonumentation Peer Group 

Member Agreements for Donald Sandel and Noah Penn, Land Surveyor’s for a period of January 1, 

2024 through December 31, 2024 and allow Chair to sign. 

67



UNOFFICIAL

2 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

Roll call vote: Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. McCormick – yes; and 

  Mr. Walker – yes.  

Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024–117 – MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Beggs, to appoint Connie Cargill, Treasurer Golden 

Township, to the Materials Management Planning Committee representing the elected official from a 

city, village or municipality for a term to expire on December 31, 2030. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024-120 – SIDEWALK AND CONCRETE REPLACEMENT 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Erickson to approve the concrete replacement for driveway, 

sidewalk and surrounding areas at the Sheriff’s Department not to exceed $6,000 to be completed in 

conjunction with the City of Hart’s sidewalk project.  

Roll call vote: Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. McCormick – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; and 

 Mr. Walker – yes. 

Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024–118 – CRYSTAL VALLEY DAM (TBD) 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. McCormick, to allow Mr. James Tiffany to apply to 

EGLE for a permit to remediate the issue at Crystal Valley Dam. 

Roll call vote: Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. McCormick – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; and 

  Mr. Walker – yes.  

Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024- 119 – PAYMENT OF CLAIMS 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Beggs, to adopt Motion #2024-119, approving the payment 

of accounts payable and release of funds for October 10, 2024. 

AMBULANCE $2,315.28 

GIS -0-

FOC -0-

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL -0-

SHELBY TWP COMM PARK -0-

BROWNFIELD -0-

AUTOMATION R.O.D.   739.19 

INDIGENT DEFENSE 14,338.39 

LCOT 300.00 

K9 UNIT 109.18 

CJT 250.00 

CDBG -0-

ARPA 31,942.06 

VETERANS AFFAIRS 4,820.38 

TECH & INNOVATION 1,332.09 

CAPITAL PROG/EQUIP REP -0-

68



UNOFFICIAL

3 OCTOBER 10, 2024 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT 2,699.32 

FORECLOSURE -0-

BUILDING DEPARTMENT   20,909.10 

GENERAL FUND 363,630.68 

GRAND TOTAL $443,385.67 

Roll call vote: Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. McCormick – yes; and 

Mr. Walker – yes. 

Motion carried. 

Commissioner’s Reports 

Mr. Beggs reported that he met the new part-time Veteran’s Service officer. He seems to be getting 

acclimated very well. The Road Commission is nearing the end of the “Road Construction” Season. 

There has been $16M in road repairs with 144 miles of improved road surface.  

Mr. Hardy reported that he will have a 911 meeting next week and will report after that. 

Mr. Erickson thanked the commissioners for the ability to move forward with the Crystal Valley Dam 

project and also commented on the County Parks. 

Ms. Byard stated that the Budget Hearing is scheduled for the next Board Meeting on October 26, and 

wanted to know when they would like the Budget Workshop scheduled.  Also, she wanted to know if 

the Board would like her to prepare a list of what was approved, put on hold, and what has been 

requested since the last workshop.  

Mr. Walker suggested that Tuesday, October 15, 2024 at 8:00 a.m. for the Budget Workshop. 

He also commented that on McKinley Road in Grant Township, there is a new private subdivision put 

in where two new houses were built with a value of just under $500,000 each. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Chairperson Walker asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 12:43 p.m. 

_______________________________ 

Amy L. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Date Mr. Walker, Chairperson 

69



FUND DEPT # DEPARTMENT PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL

210 AMBULANCE 54.36$                            4,422.10$                     4,476.46$                         

AMBULANCE FUND TOTAL 54.36$                            4,422.10$                     4,476.46$                         

211 GIS -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GIS FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

215 FOC -$                                2,194.06$                     2,194.06$                         

FOC PAYROLL 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

FOC FICA 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

FOC RETIREMENT 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

FOC FRINGE 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

WORKERS COMP 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

FOC FUND TOTAL -$                                2,194.06$                     2,194.06$                         

238 PENTWATER-HART TRAIL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

239 SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK -$                                -$                              -$                                 

SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

243 BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 41,485.52$                     -$                              41,485.52$                       

           BROWNFIELD REDEVELOP. AUTHORITY TOTAL 41,485.52$                     -$                              41,485.52$                       

256 AUTOMATION R.O.D. -$                                1,026.88$                     1,026.88$                         

AUTOMATION R.O.D. FUND TOTAL -$                                1,026.88$                     1,026.88$                         

260 INDIGENT DEFENSE -$                                41,071.65$                   41,071.65$                       

INDIGENT DEFENSE PAYROLL 2,591.72$                       -$                              2,591.72$                         

INDIGENT DEFENSE FICA 21 198.27$                          -$                              198.27$                            

INDIGENT DEFENSE RETIREMENT 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

INDIGENT DEFENSE FRINGE 21 1,103.62$                       -$                              1,103.62$                         

WORKERS COMP 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND TOTAL 3,893.61$                       41,071.65$                   44,965.26$                       

264 LCOT 92.00$                            300.00$                        392.00$                            

LCOT PAYROLL 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

LCOT FICA 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

LCOT RETIREMENT 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

WORKERS COMP 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

RETIREMENT 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

LOCT FUND TOTAL -$                                300.00$                        300.00$                            

267 K9 UNIT -$                                1,251.79$                     1,251.79$                         

K9 UNIT FUND -$                                1,251.79$                     1,251.79$                         

272 CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING -$                                1,397.69$                     1,397.69$                         

CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING FUND TOTAL -$                                1,397.69$                     1,397.69$                         

277 CDBG -$                                -$                              -$                                 

CDBG FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

286 ARPA -$                                -$                              -$                                 

APRA FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

293 DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS 575.93$                          689.12$                        1,265.05$                         

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS PAYROLL 21 4,365.78$                       -$                              4,365.78$                         

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FICA 21 330.27$                          -$                              330.27$                            

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS RETIREMENT 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

Board Approval of Accounts Payable & Release of Funds

Thursday, October 24, 2024

70



DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FRINGE 21 1,103.57$                       -$                              1,103.57$                         

WORKERS COMP 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FUND TOTAL 6,375.55$                       689.12$                        7,064.67$                         

298 TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION 3,633.53$                       1,074.27$                     4,707.80$                         

TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION FUND TOTAL 3,633.53$                       1,074.27$                     4,707.80$                         

405 CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE -$                                -$                              -$                                 

CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

445 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

549 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 165.48$                          -$                              165.48$                            

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PAYROLL 21 2,539.39$                       -$                              2,539.39$                         

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FICA 21 189.66$                          -$                              189.66$                            

BUILDING DEPARTMENT RETIREMENT 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FRINGE 21 1,103.58$                       -$                              1,103.58$                         

WORKERS COMP 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND TOTAL 3,998.11$                       -$                              3,998.11$                         

101 GENERAL FUND PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL

101 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 234.17$                          576.80$                        810.97$                            

172 ADMINISTRATOR/FISCAL OFFICER 41.41$                            181.08$                        222.49$                            

208 INSURANCE 100.00$                          45,272.65$                   45,372.65$                       

209 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 

215 COUNTY CLERK -$                                200.00$                        200.00$                            

216 JURY BOARD -$                                -$                              -$                                 

217 APPORTIONMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

223 COUNTY AUDITING -$                                -$                              -$                                 

228 DATA PROCESSING -$                                136.64$                        136.64$                            

229 TECHNOLOGY -$                                -$                              -$                                 

244 TAX ALLOCATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 

245 REMONUMENTATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 

248 GENERAL SERVICES 31.72$                            473.48$                        505.20$                            

249 PLAT BOARD -$                                -$                              -$                                 

250 MICROFILM -$                                237.05$                        237.05$                            

253 COUNTY TREASURER 32.00$                            105.52$                        137.52$                            

257 EQUALIZATION 40.01$                            18,314.79$                   18,354.80$                       

262 ELECTIONS -$                                682.43$                        682.43$                            

265 COURTHOUSE/GROUNDS 2,245.46$                       -$                              2,245.46$                         

283 CIRCUIT COURT 1,712.38$                       14,974.03$                   16,686.41$                       

286 DISTRICT COURT 878.09$                          4,805.56$                     5,683.65$                         

289 FRIEND OF THE COURT 412.62$                          4,725.24$                     5,137.86$                         

294 PROBATE COURT -$                                2,548.99$                     2,548.99$                         

295 PROBATION/PAROLE -$                                35.89$                          35.89$                              

296 PROSECUTING ATTORNEY -$                                2,088.20$                     2,088.20$                         

298 FAMILY COUNSELING -$                                -$                              -$                                 

301 SHERIFF 22,756.47$                     4,333.20$                     27,089.67$                       

331 MARINE LAW -$                                -$                              -$                                 

332 SNOWMOBILE ENFORCEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

333 ROAD PATROL -$                                -$                              -$                                 

351 JAIL 4,903.41$                       3,794.62$                     8,698.03$                         

71



426 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

430 ANIMAL CONTROL 593.52$                          1,215.42$                     1,808.94$                         

442 DRAIN COMMISSIONER 107.09$                          58.00$                          165.09$                            

445 DRAINS - PUBLIC BENEFIT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

528 TRANSFER STATION/RECYCLING CENTER 2,805.14$                       2,989.96$                     5,795.10$                         

568 SOIL CONSERVATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 

595 AIRPORT 245.32$                          8,631.51$                     8,876.83$                         

601 HEALTH DEPARTMENT 42,884.69$                     -$                              42,884.69$                       

605 CONTAGIOUS DISEASES -$                                -$                              -$                                 

648 MEDICAL EXAMINER -$                                8,517.94$                     8,517.94$                         

649 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH 10,647.92$                     -$                              10,647.92$                       

701 PLANNING COMMISSION -$                                -$                              -$                                 

710 MSU EXTENSION -$                                -$                              -$                                 

711 REGISTER OF DEEDS -$                                57.70$                          57.70$                              

728 EDC -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GENERAL PAYROLL 21 222,363.64$                   -$                              222,363.64$                     

GENERAL FICA 21 16,627.40$                     -$                              16,627.40$                       

GENERAL RETIREMENT 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GENERAL FRINGE 21 83,320.53$                     -$                              83,320.53$                       

WORKERS COMP 21 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 412,982.99$                   124,956.70$                 537,939.69$                     

GRAND TOTAL 472,423.67$                   178,384.26$                 650,807.93$                     

GENERAL FUND WITHOUT PAYROLL 90,671.42$                     

72


	Cover
	Public Notice
	Properties, Environment and Economic Development
	Minutes
	Bldg Dept Move IT Supplies
	Chiller

	Finance and Administration
	Minutes
	Emergency Mgt Performance Grant
	MSU Extension Memorandum of Agreement
	MSU Extension Agreement for clerical support
	Apportionment Report and L4402
	Administrator's Review of Claims

	Regular Agenda
	Budget Resolution
	Minutes
	Claims for Payment




